
 Agenda

Page 1

Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3)

Time and Date
10.00 am on Wednesday, 16th March 2016

Place
Committee Rooms 2 and 3 - Council House

Public Business

1. Apologies and Substitutions  

2. Declarations of Interest  

3. Minutes  (Pages 3 - 8)

(a) To agree the Minutes of the meeting held on 27th January 2016

(b) Matters arising

4. Feedback on the Local Plan and City Centre Area Action Plan Periods of 
Public Consultation (18 January 2016 - 29 February 2016)  (Pages 9 - 30)

To receive a briefing note of the Executive Director of Place providing details 
of the representations made following publication of the Local Plan and the 
City Centre Area Action Plan. 

(Note: The Leader, Deputy Leader, Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise 
and Economy and members of the Planning Committee have been invited to 
attend the meeting for consideration of this item.)

5. Parks and Friends Groups Task and Finish Group Recommendations  
(Pages 31 - 36)

To receive a report of the Task and Finish Group on the outcomes and 
recommendations of the Group.

6. Work Programme 2015/2016  (Pages 37 - 42)

Report of the Scrutiny Co-ordinator

7. Outstanding Issues  

Outstanding issues are picked up in the Work Programme

Public Document Pack



Page 2

8. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved  

Private Business
Nil

Chris West, Executive Director, Resources, Council House, Coventry

Tuesday, 8 March 2016

Note: The person to contact about the agenda and documents for this meeting is 
Michelle Salmon, Governance Services, Tel: 024 7683 3065, Email: 
michelle.salmon@coventry.gov.uk

Membership: Councillors M Ali, L Bigham, J Birdi, G Crookes, R Lakha (Chair), 
K Mulhall, M Mutton, H Sweet, and S Walsh

By invitation: 
Cabinet Members/Deputy Cabinet Members:
Councillor K Maton (Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment)
J McNicholas (Deputy Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment)
R Brown (Deputy Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment)
A Khan (Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sport and Parks)
A Lucas, Leader of the Council

Planning Committee:
Councillors N Akhtar, P Akhtar, R Bailey, D Chater (Deputy Chair), J Lepoidevin,       
C Miks, and S Thomas
  

Please note: a hearing loop is available in the committee rooms

If you require a British Sign Language interpreter for this meeting 
OR it you would like this information in another format or 
language please contact us.

Michelle Salmon
Governance Services
Tel: 024 7683 3065
Email: michelle.salmon@coventry.gov.uk



– 1 –

Coventry City Council
Minutes of the Meeting of Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) 

held at 10.00 am on Wednesday, 27 January 2016

Present:
Members: Councillor R Lakha (Chair)

Councillor L Bigham
Councillor J Birdi
Councillor G Crookes
Councillor Duggins (Substitute for Councillor M Mutton)
Councillor K Mulhall
Councillor H Sweet
Councillor S Walsh

Other Members: Councillor K Maton (Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and 
Employment)
R Brown (Deputy Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and 
Employment)  
D Welsh (Chair of the Health and Social Care Scrutiny Board (5)) 

Employees (By Directorate)

People

Place

Resources

T Evans

H Caves, M Fothergill, C Hickin, D Nuttall

G Holmes, M Salmon

Apologies: Councillor M Ali
Councillor D Galliers (by invitation)
Councillor M Mutton 

Public Business

29. Declarations of Interest 

Councillor Birdi declared a disclosable pecuniary interest in the matter referred to 
in Minute 31 below, headed ‘Recommendations from the Business, Economy and 
Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) Task and Finish Group’. He withdrew from the 
meeting for the consideration of this matter.

In respect of the matter referred to in Minute 33 below, headed ‘Coventry Sports 
Strategy 2014-2024 – Progress Review’, Councillor Duggins indicated that he had 
membership of the AT7 Centre and asked that this be noted.

30. Minutes 

The minutes of the meeting held on 15th December 2015 were agreed and signed 
as a true record. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



– 2 –

Further to Minute 25/15 headed ‘Delivering the Jobs and Growth Strategy’, the 
Scrutiny Co-ordinator updated the Board on zero hour contracts, in that:

• The Council did not employee persons on zero hour contracts. It did employee 
persons on casual contracts which did not restrict them from undertaking work with 
other employers at the same time as being employed on these arrangements with 
the Authority.

• Pertemps Employment Agency had confirmed that they did not employ their 
workers on zero hours contracts. They were employed on guaranteed hour 
contracts as was the policy throughout Pertemps.
 
• Pertemps had contacted all of their suppliers and only 3 out of 28 agencies 
used zero hour contracts.

31. Recommendations from the Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny 
Board (3) Task and Finish Group on Discretionary Licensing 

The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) considered a report of 
the Executive Director of Place that set out recommendations of the Board’s Task 
and Finish Group on Discretionary Licensing. Councillor Welsh, the Chair of the 
Group was invited to attend the meeting for consideration of this item.

The Task and Finish Group was established by the Board in June 2014 to 
consider the practicalities and implications of introducing a licensing scheme for 
the private rented sector in the city. The report of the Group, attached as an 
appendix to the report, considered whether certain areas of the city met the 
Government’s required criteria for implementing such a scheme. This included the 
examination of data available on percentages of private rented properties, anti-
social behaviour and levels of deprivation for all wards of the city. The scheme 
would cover all private rented property in the designated area, not just shared 
properties or houses in multiple occupation.

The report recommended that the Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and 
Employment, initiate the process to implement a selective licensing scheme for the 
private rented sector in parts of St. Michael’s Ward, which included a public 
consultation requirement with all key stakeholders. 

The Housing Act 2004 stated that when considering designating an area the local 
housing authority must: take reasonable steps to consult persons who were likely 
to be affected by the designation; and consider any representations made in 
accordance with the consultation. On completion of the consultation, the results 
should be published and made available to the local community.

The Board questioned officers and discussed the following issues:

 The difference between a licensing scheme and an Article 4 directive – 
licensing looked at the quality of the housing, Article 4 required planning 
applications for houses in multiple occupation – it didn’t prevent or reduce 
numbers. Licensing covered all private rented property, an Article 4 would 
just cover housing in multiple occupation.

Page 4



– 3 –

 Proposals for the future ‘roll-out’ of a Licensing Scheme across the City if 
the St. Michael’s Ward Scheme is successful.

 Potential improvements to housing conditions through selective licensing - 
standard/condition of housing to be kept under review through the inclusion 
of property safety certificates in the Licence.

 Housing Officers inspections – identifying landlord neglect of premises 
and/or tenant damage.

 Encouraging sign up to the Accredited Landlord Scheme by offer of a 
discount to the Licence.

 Data – available by ward,  on numbers of private rented properties, levels of 
deprivation and anti-social behaviour reported to the police, noise 
complaints and fly-tipping.  

 Consultation – Landlords and Landlord Associations, key stakeholders 
across Wards of the City.

 Licence Fee – One charge for a 5 year licence.
 Levels of rent payable – dictated by market forces.
 Requirement for Scheme to be cost neutral – Charges to enable inspection 

and administration of the scheme only – it does not cover enforcement.  
 Managing risk – project management to ensure criteria for operating a 

Scheme is fully met and the correct legislative procedures for establishing a 
Scheme is accurately followed. Evidence provided to support justification of 
a Scheme. Continuous monitoring of implemented Scheme.

The Chair of the Board thanked the Elected Members appointed to the Task and 
Finish Group and to the officers who supported the Group, on the work they had 
undertaken.

The Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment welcomed the 
Scheme and indicated his full support for the proposals.

The Board requested that they be provided with information on how the data on 
privately rented properties was calculated.

RESOLVED that the Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3):

(1) Supports the recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Business, 
Enterprise and Employment.

(2) Agrees to receive a further report on progress against the 
recommendations in 12 months’ time

32. Coventry and Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership - Progress Report 

The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) considered a report of 
the Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment in his role as a 
Director of the Coventry and Warwickshire Local Enterprise Partnership (CWLEP). 
Appendices to the report provided information on the work of the CWLEP and their 
Annual Report.

Page 5



– 4 –

The CWLEP worked with private and public sector organisations to drive economic 
growth and create jobs across the area. It provided support to businesses of all 
sizes from Small and Medium Enterprises to global businesses in every sector.

At the Council’s Annual General Meeting on 21 May 2015, Councillor Lucas and 
Councillor Maton were appointed as Directors of the CWLEP. Council 
representatives on outside bodies were required to update Scrutiny on the activity 
of the outside body and recommend whether or not to re-appoint at the next AGM.

The Board questioned the Cabinet Member and discussed the following issues:

 The composition of the LEP Board.
 The benefits and impact of the LEP for the City.
 The revenue funding/running costs of the LEP, including officer support.
 The 33 projects – types of projects and locations.
 Foreign Direct Investment and Government Investment.
 The 2015 impact of the Growth Hub – key business engagement.
 The LEP’s Strategic Economic Plan, it’s 5 priorities and jobs target.
 Proposals for an Economic Plan for Coventry – identifying skills, office 

development, small businesses and retail needs of the City.
 How the LEP fits with the West Midlands Combined Authority and where 

the Combined Authority sits in the Midlands Engine (a marketing tool for the 
region).

 The possible further reduction of the Government’s revenue support grant 
and the importance of generating future Business Rates and Council Tax in 
the City.

  
The Board requested that the following information be circulated to Members of 
the Board:

• Further details of the 33 project successes.

• Details of where the revenue funding of the LEP comes from and the cost to 
the City Council of Officer support.

RESOLVED that the Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3):

(1) Notes the content of the information on the work of the CWLEP and their 
Annual Report, attached as appendices to the report.

(2) Supports the re-appointment of Council representatives to the Board of 
CWLEP.

33. Coventry Sports Strategy 2014-2024 - Progress Review (16 month update) 

The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) received a presentation 
and briefing note of the Executive Director of Place that provided details of the 
progress made on the Coventry Sports Strategy 2014-2024 since approval of the 
Strategy by Cabinet in August 2014 (their minute 40/14 referred) and Council in 
September 2014 (their minute 58/14 referred). In line with Strategy 
recommendations regarding future public leisure provision, Council further 

Page 6



– 5 –

approved investment of £36.7m in a city centre destination sports and leisure 
facility (their minute 59/14 referred).

The mission of the Coventry Sports Strategy 2014-2024 was ‘To develop a more 
active, inclusive and vibrant Coventry through positive experiences in sport’. It was 
structured around eight Vision Aims and 37 Strategic Objectives and included 
objectives concerned with increasing and widening participation in sport; 
increasing the number of people receiving sports coaching; increasing the number 
of people volunteering in sport; establishing and embedding early specialist 
support services for talented athletes; developing City Centre sports facilities that 
are accessible, high quality, sustainable and of significance to the Midlands; 
attracting high profile sporting events to the City; establishing a Coventry Sports 
Network; and harnessing the power of sport to promote community cohesion and 
address public health inequalities in the City. The Strategy was influenced and 
supported by the Coventry Playing Pitch Strategy 2014-2024, the Coventry Indoor 
Facilities Strategy 2014-2024 and the Coventry Aquatics Strategy 2014-2024.  

The Board received Key Strategy updates where there had been the largest focus 
of activity in the first 16 months of the implementation, these were:

 Vision Aim 1 - To inspire more people in the city to take up and regularly 
take part in sport: #Ucan project; In It Together; Coventry Public Leisure 
Participation Data.

 Vision Aim 2 - To provide a wide range of high quality and exciting sporting 
opportunities and experiences: National Governing Body Planning; The 
‘Engage!’ Project; Rugby League Decommissioned Sport England Funding.

 Vision Aim 3 - To inspire more people to volunteer, coach and be facilitators 
of sport: EnV.

 Vision Aim 4 - To identify and support talented athletes to reach their 
sporting potential: Support to Succeed.

 Vision Aim 5 - To provide a range of modern, accessible and high quality 
sports facilities in the city: Centre AT7; Destination Water Park; Bowls; 
President Kennedy School; Badminton England, England Squash and 
Racketball and the Sport England Inspired Facilities Fund.

 Vision Aim 6 - To attract high profile sporting events to the city and to 
celebrate sporting achievement: Ricoh Arena; Rugby World Cup 2015; Ice 
Hockey; Sports Week.

 Vision Aim 7 – To grow and promote sport in the city through effective 
partnerships: Coventry Sports Network; External Funding; Coventry Sport 
Network – Year 2 Priorities; Public Health.

 Vision Aim 8 – For sport to make Coventry a better place to live, work and 
visit: Coventry Sports Strategy’s Contribution to the City; Sport England 
Active People Survey Results.

The Board questioned officers and discussed the following issues:

 Public Health and Sport link – health service benefits.
 Volunteers – their value in supporting/initiating sporting events, further 

volunteer recruitment and future coaching possibilities. 
 School Academy Conversions – loss of some sports facilities for 

communities and price increases for hiring facilities.

Page 7



– 6 –

 Tennis – provision of facilities to enable continuation of participation in the 
sport once specific Programmes have ended, particularly in the North East 
of the City.

 Sports linked to the Strategy – resource limitations.
 Charitable organisation support to sports clubs.
 Exploring planning section 106 agreements for resources to support sports 

provision/facilities.
 Encouraging schools to offer their sports facilities for community use/hire – 

benefit of undertaking an audit of the current provision and use.
 Participation in sports on school sites for children with parents on low 

incomes.

RESOLVED that the Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3):

(1) Acknowledges the progress on implementing the partnership Coventry 
Sports Strategy 2014-2024 since its approval by Cabinet in August 2014 
and endorsement by Council in September 2014.

(2) Endorses proposals concerning the next set of priorities for the 
Coventry Sport Network. 

(3) Requests that the following recommendation be forwarded to the  
Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sport and Parks: 

• The support that can be given to assist children with parents on low 
incomes to participate in sports on school sites be explored.

 
• An audit be undertaken of community use of schools sports 

facilities.

34. Outstanding Issues 

Outstanding issues were included in the Board’s Work Programme.

35. Work Programme 2015/2016 

The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) considered the Work 
Programme 2015/2016 and discussed the scheduling of proposed issues for 
consideration at future meetings of the Board.

RESOLVED that the Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) 
notes the Work Programme 2015/2016 and requests that the Scrutiny Co-
ordinator liaises with relevant officers on the items listed under ‘Date to be 
arranged’, to identify issues for the April meeting of the Board.

36. Any other items of public business which the Chair decides to take as 
matters of urgency because of the special circumstances involved 

There were no other items of public business.

The meeting closed at 12.40 pm

Page 8



abc Briefing note 
  

 

 
To: The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) Date 16th March 2016 
 

 
Subject: Feedback on the Local Plan and City Centre Area Action Plan Periods of Public 
Consultation (January 18th 2016 – February 29th 2016)  
 
 

 

 

1 Purpose of the Note 
 
1.1 The purpose of this note is to provide the members of Scrutiny Board 3 with a 

summary of the feedback and consultation responses received to the statutory 
period of public consultation between January 18th and February 29th 2016, in so far 
as they relate to the Draft City Centre Area Action Plan (AAP) – Publication Draft 
(2016) and the Draft Local Plan – Publication Draft (2016). 
 

1.2 This paper responds to recommendation 4 of the City Centre AAP report and 
recommendation 5 of the Local Plan report endorsed by Cabinet and Council at 
their respective meetings on the 12th January 2016. For the avoidance of doubt, the 
recommendations read as follows: 

“Delegate authority to the Executive Director of Place, in consultation with the 
Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment, the Chair of 
Scrutiny Board 3 and the Chair of Planning Committee, to take full account of 
the responses received to the statutory period of public engagement, propose 
minor amendments to the City Centre Area Action Plan / Local Plan (replace 
as appropriate) (where this is necessary to correct any errors and aid clarity) 
and submit the plan to the Secretary of State for a period of Public 
Examination”. 

 
This report has been presented and supported by those named in this 
recommendation as follows: 

• Executive Director of Place – 4th March 2016 

• Cabinet Member for Business, Enterprise and Employment – 4th March 2016 
 

It is to be presented initially to the Chair of Planning Committee on the 10th March 
2016 and is presented to the Chair of Scrutiny Board 3 as part of this meeting. 

2 Recommendations 
 
2.1 The Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) are recommended to: 

 
1) Consider the content of the briefing note and its Appendices; and 
2) Endorse the submission of all representations and summary notes of public 

meetings, ward forums and drop in sessions and the schedule of proposed 

Page 9

Agenda Item 4



 2 

minor changes to the Secretary of State for further consideration through 
Public Examination of the city’s draft Local Plan and City Centre Area Action 
Plan. 

3 Information/Background 
 
3.1 The period of public engagement began on Monday 18th January and finished on 

the 29th February 2016. The Plans did however become public on the 4th January in 
advance of them being considered by Cabinet and Council on the 12th January. 
Throughout the period of engagement the Council’s Planning Policy team have 
worked jointly with the Communications team to ensure that a comprehensive 
communications strategy has been delivered. This has been carried out in full 
accordance with the Council’s Statement of Community Involvement and also 
included the first stage of an Equalities and Consultation Analysis.  
 

3.2 The section below summarises the public engagement processes and the feedback 
received. This principally groups the engagement process into 1 of 5 categories:  

• Public meetings (including Ward forums); 

• Public drop-in sessions;  

• Other engagement activity; 

• Community responses to both Plans; 

• Developer responses to both Plans; and 

• Responses to both Plans relating to the Duty to Cooperate 

4 Public Meetings 
 

4.1 In order to respond to some of the development proposals in the Local Plan that 
were situated in areas that were most effected by the removal of land from the 
Green Belt a selection of public meetings were held across the city. These 
meetings were advertised in local media and by way of post card delivery to in 
excess of 1,000 homes within the immediate vicinity of each location. We have 
been advised that not all homes within the immediate vicinity received these cards 
informing them of the public meetings, however we are as confident as we can be 
that local communities were well aware of the Local Plan proposals and that if some 
homes were missed as part of the delivery, this has not hampered local 
communities abilities to respond to the Plans or attend public meetings or drop-in 
sessions. 
 

4.2 The table below highlights the list of public meetings that were held. It is important 
to acknowledge that in the case of Cromwell Lane, the public meeting was original 
scheduled to be held jointly with the Westwood Ward Forum for the 9th February 
and this date was initially advertised in the Coventry Telegraph and on the Council 
webpage. Due to a change in date of the Ward Forum this date was then moved to 
the 16th February. To avoid confusion within the local community and to help 
maximise community engagement, the meeting on the 9th February was honoured 
and retained. As such, 2 meetings were held in this part of the city. 
 

4.3 In the case of the Keresley evening meeting and drop-in session, these were 
originally scheduled for Lentons Lane Baptist Church and advertised in the 

Coventry Telegraph and on the Council webpage. This reflected initial difficulty 
arranging suitable venues within the immediate vicinity of Keresley. Following the 
initial publication of these meetings a number of responses were received from the 
local community requesting the meeting be moved to a venue closer to the 

Page 10



 3 

Keresley community. As a result of this community engagement a new public 
meeting and drop-in session were arranged at President Kennedy School. To avoid 
confusion within the local communities and to help maximise community 
engagement, the original meetings advertised at Lentons Lane Baptist Church were 
honoured and retained, although both were held as drop-in sessions instead of one 
being held as a public meeting. 
 

4.4 In the case of the public meeting at Longford, this was held in tandem with the 
advertised Ward Forum. As mentioned above, one of the 2 meetings at Cromwell 
Lane was also held in tandem with the Westwood Ward Forum. 
 

4.5 The table below clarifies the dates and venues for the public meetings as well as 
approximate attendance levels and an initial summary of the key discussion areas. 
Appendix 2 contains a full overview of the questions raised and the answers 
provided by officers. 
 

4.6 A full copy of the presentation given at the public meetings and ward forums is 
included at Appendix 1 

 
 

Date of Public 

Meeting 
Venue 

Approximate 

Attendance 
Key areas of discussion 

Tuesday 19th 

January  

Eastern Green 

Public Meeting 
300+ 

Objection to Green Belt development, 

especially within the Eastern Green area. 

Questions were also asked around 

infrastructure delivery and the 

relationship of new homes to existing 

residential communities. Concerns were 

also raised about the consultation 

timeframe and the release of information 

to support the process. 

Tuesday 26th 

January  

Whitley Public 

Meeting 
0-50 

Objection to Green Belt development, 

especially as part of an expanded Whitley 

Business Park. Concerns focused primarily 

around the possible impact on ecology 

and biodiversity in the local area and how 

new employment development would 

relate to existing residential 

communities. Questions were also asked 

about infrastructure delivery – most 

notably around highway improvements. 

Wednesday 

3rd February 

Keresley Public 

Meeting 
100-150 

Objection to Green Belt development, 

especially within the Keresley area. 

Questions were also asked around 

infrastructure delivery and the 

relationship of new homes to existing 

residential communities. 

Tuesday 9th 

February 

Cromwell Lane 

Public Meeting 
50-100 

Objection to Green Belt development, 

especially in relation to land at Cromwell 

Lane. Specific concerns were raised 

around highway impacts along Cromwell 

Lane and the surrounding area.  This 

Page 11



 4 

included issues of parking pressures at 

Tile Hill Station and matters of highway 

safety. Questions were also asked around 

general infrastructure delivery and the 

relationship of new homes to existing 

residential communities. 

Tuesday 16th 

February 

Westwood 

Ward Forum 

and Cromwell 

Lane Public 

Meeting 

50-100 
The focus of the meeting mirrored that of 

the initial Cromwell Lane meeting. 

Wednesday 

17th February 

Longford Ward 

Forum and 

Public Meeting 

0-50 

Discussions focused on matters of 

infrastructure – especially schools, cycle 

paths and public transport. Concerns 

about parking pressures were also raised. 

Discussions were also had around design 

and build quality. 

 
4.7 In addition to the arranged public meetings, offers were made for officers to attend 

all Ward Forums across Coventry, all of which were held during the consultation 
period. The Local Plan and City Centre Area Action Plan were formally presented at 
12 of the ward forums: Binley and Willenhall; Earlsdon; Foleshill; Henley; Longford; 
Lower Stoke; Radford; Upper Stoke; Westwood; Whoberley; Woodlands; and 
Wyken.  
 

4.8 They were then discussed more informally as part of other business or related to 
other aspects of the agenda at 5 other forums: Cheylesmore (linked to JLR, Student 
accommodation and specific development schemes); Wainbody and Bablake 
(general discussion and Green Belt pressures); Sherbourne (heritage and 
conservation) and Holbrook (general discussion). No discussion was had at St 
Michaels ward forum.  
 

4.9 It should be noted that a formal presentation was requested for Wainbody Ward 
Forum but due to other officer commitments at other advertised sessions it did not 
prove possible to attend. Offers were made to undertake a separate forum but 
these did not prove forthcoming. 
 

4.10 This meant that the Local Plan and Area Action Plan were discussed at 21 public 
meetings and/or ward forums. Although some local residents were notable 
attendees at more than 1 event, it meant the Plans were presented to 
approximately 1,000 local residents over the course of these meetings.  
 

4.11 The table below provides an initial summary of the Ward Forum discussions based 
on officers initial notes. Full notes and records of these events are currently being 
produced by the Ward Forum Support Officers.  Those that are currently available 
are included in Appendix 3 of this report. The remainder will be included as part of 
the submission of material to the Secretary of State. 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 5 

Date of Public 

Meeting 
Venue 

Approximate 

Attendance 
Key areas of discussion 

Thursday 21
st
 

January 
Holbrook 0-50 

Although no formal presentation was given 

on the Local Plan or AAP, both Plans were 

highlighted as part of the Agenda. This drew 

attention to the consultation timetable and 

programme and encouraged residents to 

view the Plan on the Council’s website or 

within local libraries. 

Wednesday 

27
th

 January 
Bablake 0-50 

Discussion focused around the consultation 

process and how previous consultation 

exercises were being taken into account. 

There were also questions about how the 

Green Belt review work had been used. 

Green Infrastructure was also highlighted 

and there was a desire to make sure new 

developments were well supported by new 

useable green spaces. 

Thursday 28th 

January 
Foleshill 0-50 

Discussion focused on the need to continue 

urban regeneration, including detailed 

points around empty homes and dilapidated 

properties. Opportunities to CPO old and 

vacant properties and rebuild with better 

quality homes would be supported in 

principle, especially if it helped create new, 

higher quality social housing.  Support also 

expressed for improvements to highway 

infrastructure, highway safety and public 

transport. 

Thursday 28th 

January 
Upper Stoke 0-50 

There was general support for the Council’s 

ambition to grow and improve the city. 

Support was also highlighted for the need 

for new homes. Concerns were raised 

though around the City Centre and its focus 

on students and the university in general. 

This led to discussions around student 

homes and HiMO’s and their impacts on 

local communities. Parking standards were 

also discussed. 

Tuesday 9
th

 

February 
Cheylesmore 0-50 

Although no formal presentation was given 

on the Local Plan or AAP, a number of 

related issues were discussed. This included 

the planned expansion of JLR at Whitley and 

within Warwick District, issues around 

student accommodation and city centre 

developments at Friargate in particular. 

Wednesday 

10
th

 February 
Sherbourne 0-50 

A specific presentation was given on the 

city’s heritage and historic environment. As 

part of this discussion reference was made 

to the Local Plan and the City Centre AAP. 

Page 13



 6 

Thursday 11
th

 

February 

Whoberley 0-50 

Discussion focused around the need for new 

affordable housing and more purpose built 

student accommodation.  Highway 

infrastructure was discussed, especially 

around the A45. Questions were asked 

about joint working with neighbouring 

authorities and how flood risks had been 

considered. 

Thursday 11
th

 

February 
Woodlands 50-100 

The focus of the meeting mirrored that of 

the initial public meeting at Eastern Green. 

Tuesday 16
th

 

February 
Westwood 50-100 

The focus of the meeting mirrored that of 

the initial Cromwell Lane meeting. 

Wednesday 

17th February 

Binley and 

Willenhall 
0-50 

Discussions primarily focused around the 

need for development and how it would be 

supported by infrastructure. There was a 

feeling that the City Centre had become too 

student orientated and that more 

opportunities should be brought forward for 

non-student housing in the city centre. City 

centre car parking should also be improved. 

There was support for the links to the 

Willenhall Neighbourhood Plan. 

Wednesday 

17th February 
Longford 0-50 

Discussions focused on matters of 

infrastructure – especially schools, cycle 

paths and public transport. Concerns about 

parking pressures were also raised. 

Discussions were also had around design and 

build quality. 

Thursday 18
th

 

February 
Wyken 0-50 

Concerns were raised about Green Belt 

development and why the Local Plan needed 

to promote it.  There was however support 

for highway improvements and it was 

suggested that connectivity between 

Coventry and Nuneaton be improved. Local 

traffic issues were also discussed and 

improvements requested as part of any new 

development in the area. 

Wednesday 

24
th

 February 
Radford 0-50 

Questions were asked about why Keresley 

had been singled out for such large scale 

development. Concerns were also raised 

around access to healthcare facilities and the 

capacity of the hospital and local schools. In 

terms of the city centre there was a feeling 

that it was becoming too student focused 

whilst improvements were also required to 

cycle infrastructure. 

Wednesday 

24
th

 February 
Henley 0-50 

Discussions focused on the possible 

developments at Walsgrave Hill Farm and 

how the site would be accessed in a suitable 

way. Public Transport provisions were also 

Page 14



 7 

discussed as was the possible impact of new 

development on the local road network. 

Local free schools were highlighted whilst 

there was general support for the new Local 

Green Space proposals at Walsgrave Triangle 

on the basis it would not be converted to 

sports pitches.  

Thursday 25
th

 

February 
Lower Stoke 0-50 

Discussion focused primarily around the 

city’s desire to be a Top 10 City again and 

how the Plans can support this. Discussion 

around the AAP suggested a need for a large 

community hall provision/theatre/exhibition 

space within the city centre. 

Thursday 25
th

 

February 
Earlsdon 0-50 

Discussions focused on the need for 

development in general and the origins of 

the population projections. Concerns were 

raised about the city’s ability to 

accommodate such levels of housing and 

how infrastructure would be delivered to 

support growth. The forum supported the 

proposals to enhance the city centre but felt 

its current focus was too student orientated. 

 
 
4.12 In terms of feedback, the strongest objections to the Local Plan were raised in 

Westwood (including Cromwell Lane), Woodlands (including Eastern Green), 
Whitley and Bablake (including Keresley), with objections to the principle of 
developing on Green Belt land and specific issues relating to proposed 
development sites. More general concerns around the loss of Green Belt land were 
discussed at Henley and Wyken Ward Forums. 
 

4.13 In addition the other key areas of debate in relation to the Local Plan included: 
 

• Infrastructure - both existing capacity and new provision – most notably around 
highways, drainage/flood risk, health care and education.  In this context the 
strongest discussions were had at events in Woodlands, Henley, Earlsdon, 
Radford, Binley and Willenhall, Wyken, Longford, Westwood, Foleshill, Eastern 
Green, Whitley, Cromwell Lane and Keresley. 

• Ecology and Biodiversity – the loss of Green Belt land was identified as impacting 
negatively on ecology and biodiversity as well as access to green spaces. This 
was a particularly sensitive issue in Whitley in relation to possible impacts on 
Stonebridge Meadows and Baginton Fields. Other discussions relating to the 
proposed Local Green Space designation at Walsgrave Triangle were had at the 
Henley forum whilst a need for new high, quality useable green spaces was 
raised at Bablake. 

• the extent of consultation and the availability of detailed information was felt to be 
inadequate in a small number of cases. These concerns were raised at Bablake, 
Woodlands and Westwood Ward Forums as well as the related public meetings 
at Keresley, Eastern Green and Cromwell Lane.  

• The suitability and appropriateness of background data and information, 
especially around population projections and the impact of the city’s student 

Page 15



 8 

population. This issue was raised in detail at the Keresley and Eastern Green 
public meetings. 

• The need for more affordable housing was discussed and supported in Foleshill 
and Whoberley. 
 

4.14 Further discussions at the majority of forums focused on the robustness of the 
population projections for Coventry (and Warwickshire) and the housing needs that 
are derived from them and underpin the Local Plan. This was often linked to 
questions around the need to build on Green Belt land and a desire to see greater 
focus of development on brownfield land and continuation of urban regeneration.   
 

4.15 In response, officers explained that the housing numbers were based on the most 
up to date data from the Office for National Statistics (ONS) and took account of 
household formation data issued by the Department for Communities and Local 
Government (DCLG). This data had then been developed over a number of years in 
partnership with independent planning consultants GL Hearn and all 6 of the 
Coventry and Warwickshire local authorities.  It responds to national guidance 
which states that such data must provide the fundamental basis for projecting 
population growth and subsequent development needs. This approach is set out in 
the Joint Strategic Housing Market Assessment work which underpins the Local 
Plan for all Coventry and Warwickshire authorities. Each authority is of the view that 
this evidence provides a robust basis from which to develop respective Local Plans 
and have utilised it within the recent Memorandum of Understanding for Housing 
requirements across Coventry and Warwickshire. 
 

4.16 Linked to this discussion, a number of concerns were raised around the student 
population, most notably at Westwood, Woodlands, Whoberley, Binley and 
Willenhall, Cheylesmore, Upper Stoke and Earlsdon. Officers explained that student 
population was taken account of through the ONS methodology and that the Plan 
promoted purpose built accommodation to help free up family homes. This also 
linked into discussion at these forums around Houses in Multiple Occupation 
(HiMO’s).  
 

4.17 With regards the City Centre Area Action Plan, the greatest discussions were had 
at Earlsdon, Lower Stoke, Radford, Binley and Willenhall, Whoberley, Cheylesmore 
and Upper Stoke. In general the plans for the city centre were well received at all 
meetings with 2 notable concerns being raised: 

• City centre car parking – it was felt by some that the quality of car parking in the 
city centre needed to be improved and that ideally the costs of it would reduce to 
make it more competitive with out of town shopping parks and other towns and 
cities. 

• Student orientation – It was felt by most that the city centre had become focused 
solely on students and the university. There were concerns that any development 
taking place in the city centre was solely university focused and that it was driving 
the city’s wider population out to other locations such as Solihull and Leamington. 

 
4.18 One overarching theme of the Ward Forums and public meetings that did gain 

support in principle was the need to grow and support the city’s economy, creating 
more jobs for local people. It was also discussed that new homes should follow jobs 
growth and be located in close proximity in order to support sustainable 
development. This was also seen by many as an opportunity to link infrastructure 
and promote sustainable transport. This was an overarching theme of both Plans. 
 

Page 16



 9 

4.19 In addition to the ward forums and public meetings, invitations were sent to a range 
of local community groups and forums offering opportunities to discuss the Local 
Plan and AAP. Discussions were held in following 3 cases: 

• The Coventry Society (in relation to the Historic Environment in general); 

• Coventry and Warwickshire Accessible Transport Group; and 

• The Coventry Tree Wardens Network;  
Notes of these meetings are included within Appendix 4. 

 
4.20 Although a discussion meeting was held with Allesley Parish Council at the start of 

the consultation period, this related to their emerging Neighbourhood Plan as 
opposed to a detailed discussion on the Local Plan or AAP in general. 
 

4.21 Discussions held with the Coventry Society focused primarily on the city’s historic 
environment, with some reference made to both Plans. Comments from the 
Accessible Transport Group were generally positive and focused on the 
opportunities to access the city centre from new developments as well as design, 
connectivity and access to community facilities and services. There was also a 
desire to see more homes built within the city centre and a wider range of 
accommodation for older persons and those with disabilities. In particular it was 
suggested that the city centre should not just be for students. 
 

4.22 The meetings with the tree warden’s network highlighted the wider benefits trees 
can have to other aspects within policy including air quality, health and wellbeing, 
flood risk, development viability, design and historic environments. The importance 
of woodlands (both new and ancient) was discussed and there was support for 
protecting trees, woodlands and green spaces. The Plans aims and objectives to 
promote improved accessibility and usage of such areas within new developments 
were supported in principle. Future maintenance of these assets was raised though, 
and it was felt that the Local Plan could give greater emphasis to protecting trees 
and green spaces in a well maintained way for future generations. 
 

4.23 In addition, Presentations and discussions were held with Historic England, The 
Coventry and Warwickshire LEP, the West Midlands Integrated Transport Authority 
(WMITA), Warwickshire County Council, the Coventry, Solihull and Warwickshire 
Duty to Cooperate group, and the West Midlands Metropolitan Duty to Cooperate 
group. Each of these engagement events helped discharge the Duty to Cooperate 
responsibilities that the Council have with appropriate stakeholders. 

 

5 Public drop-in sessions 
 

5.1 In order to support the public meetings a selection of drop-in sessions were also 
arranged and advertised. These were again targeted in areas that were most 
effected by the Local Plans proposals to remove land from the Green Belt. Three 
sessions were also held in the city centre utilising a vacant retail unit on Smithford 
Way these were originally advertised to be held at a unit in Market Way, but due to 
the availability of the unit, it had to be changed to Smithford Way. This change of 
venue was advertised both at the original unit itself and on the Council website. All 
drop-in sessions were advertised in the same way as the Public meetings utilising 
the same post cards in order to link the public meetings and drop-in sessions 
together. 
 

5.2 The table below highlights the list of drop-in sessions that were held. It is important 
to acknowledge that due to the change in venue for the Keresley meetings (outlined 

Page 17



 10 

above) the sessions at Lentons Lane Baptist Church were retained but were both 
held as drop-in sessions as opposed to 1 being a public meeting.   

 
5.3 The table below clarifies the dates and venues for the drop-in sessions as well as 

approximate attendance levels. Unfortunately due to the nature of the events it did 
not prove possible to record full notes and records of the questions asked. 
Appendix 5 does however contain a full summary of the areas discussed. In general 
these mirrored the discussions that were held at the public meetings and ward 
forums, especially in relation to localised concerns. 

 
 

Date of Public Meeting Venue 
Approximate 

Attendance 

Thursday 4th February  Smithford Way, City centre 0-50 

Friday 5th February  Smithford Way, City centre 0-50 

Saturday 6th February  Smithford Way, City centre 0-50 

Monday 8th February 
Lentons Lane Baptist Church – 

converted from public meeting 
0-50 

Thursday 11
th

 February 
President Kennedy School, 

Keresley 
50-100 

Monday 15
th

 February  St Andrews Church, Eastern Green 100-150 

Tuesday 16
th

 February  Whitley Academy, Whitley 0-50 

Wednesday 17
th

 February Xcel Centre, Canley  50-100 

Wednesday 24
th

  February 
Grangehurst Primary School, 

Longford 
0-50 

 

6 Other Engagement Activity 
 

6.1 A range of additional activity has taken place over the course of the consultation 
process. This has included: 

• A range of leaflets, info-graphics and promotional material made available in local 
libraries and council buildings; 

• A number of post cards delivered to local communities to advertise and promote 
the public meetings and drop-in sessions. 

• Specific radio interviews with the appropriate Cabinet Member 

• Web based Survey Monkey questionnaire 

• Letter and email notifications to Council consultation databases 

• Update of the new Local Plan website;  

• Other correspondence in local newspapers, radio and social media; and 

• Site and area specific meetings (where they have been requested) to discuss 
Plan proposals and aid clarity. 

 
6.2 Much of this activity has generated emails, phone calls and letters to the Council’s 

Planning Policy team commenting on the Local Plan in more generic terms. Much 
of this engagement has however focused on a number of key themes, including the 
need for development of Green Belt land, site/area specific issues and detailed 
enquiries around the population projections and housing numbers. The most 
common area of engagement in terms of emails and phone calls has resulted from 
residents in the Keresley, Eastern Green and Cromwell Lane areas of the city 

Page 18



 11 

expressing particular concern around the potential development of Green Belt land 
in these particular areas. 
 

6.3 It is worth noting that more public meetings and increased media coverage and 
promotional material has led to a notable uplift in engagement through day to day 
emails and phone calls, especially when compared to previous consultation 
activities relating to the Local Plan (or Core Strategy as it was previously known). 
Despite greater levels of engagement than previously undertaken on any version of 
the city’s Plan before, the total number of responses to the Local Plan has stayed 
below 1,000 (including emails, letters, response forms and Survey Monkey 
responses). Responses to the Area Action Plan have increased slightly since the 
last consultation. 

 

7 Community responses to Both Plans 
 

7.1 In response to the consultation process responses were requested through a range 
of media. Although the Planning Inspectorates standardised form was provided for 
both documents to support the process (alongside technical guidance notes) it was 
not a fundamental requirement to provide responses in this way. Indeed, in order to 
support increased input from local communities the Council set up a Survey 
Monkey questionnaire online with a selection of less technical questions, this 
retained a strong degree of consistency with the areas of consultation expected by 
the Planning Inspectorate. In addition hard copies of the survey forms were made 
available in all local libraries, the Council House, Civic Centre 4 and at all drop-in 
sessions.  
 

7.2 The Survey Monkey questionnaire contained 4 questions. These focused on the 
general views of both Plans as well as direct questions about the level of 
information available and views on the overarching objective of being a Top 10 City 
again. A total of 697 responses were received to the Survey Monkey process, 
although not everyone answered every question. Of these 499 related to the Local 
Plan and 376 to the City Centre AAP. The Table below highlights the number of 
responses received to each question.  
 

Question Answered Skipped Support Object 
Not 
Sure 

Do you think Coventry 
should grow so it can 
be a top ten city? 

692 5 204 379 109 

What do you think of 
the Local Plan? 

499 198 
- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

What do you think of 
the City Centre 
Area Action Plan? 

376 321 
- 
 

- 
 

- 
 

Do you think you have 
you had enough 
information and 
opportunities to tell us 
what you think about 
the Local Plan and the 
City Centre Area Action 
Plan? 

504 193 83 353 68 

Page 19



 12 

NB: Numbers of support and objection are to be updated. 
 

7.3 Based on officer’s initial review of the responses to Survey Monkey questionnaire, it 
would appear that all responses are from local residents and some do overlap with 
other responses received to the Local Plan.  
 

7.4 In addition to the questionnaire responses a total of 240 consultation responses 
were received from a variety of sources to the Local Plan. These were submitted 
either via email or in writing and included completed survey forms from libraries and 
drop-in sessions. The responses included a response from Jim Cunningham MP as 
well as 9 other councillors from Coventry and Warwickshire. 139 of these 
responses were from local residents and a further 91 were from individual 
companies or organisations (including neighbouring Councils). 
 

7.5 In addition a total of 4 petitions were received: 

• 29 signatures objecting to development of land in the Green Belt and at Eastern 
Green 

• 715 signatures objecting to plans to re-classify Green Belt land at Eastern Green 

• 351 signatures (at the time of writing) raised by the Allesley Green 
Residents' Association objecting to proposal to reclassify the Green Belt status 
within the city boundary in order to provide for additional housing, retail and 
industrial buildings. 

• 250 signature petition asking that the land at Baginton Fields be designated as 
Local Green Space. 

 
7.6 In general local communities and residents responded in objection to the Local Plan 

proposals. They were generally focused on 2 key areas. Firstly around the 
consultation period and a perceived lack of engagement on the Local Plan in 
particular. Secondly, around the development of land currently within the Green Belt 
in general and at specific locations, most notably Cromwell Lane, Eastern Green, 
Whitley and Keresley. This included references to encroachment on the Meriden 
Gap and concerns over the possible merging of Coventry with neighbouring towns 
and cities. In raising objections residents and communities did raise a range of 
comments relating to site specific issues and concerns. These included: 

• Highway capacity and safety and the need for improvements and investment; 

• Lack of existing capacity in local school places; 

• Lack of existing health care capacity; 

• The importance of infrastructure provisions in general; 

• Drainage and flood risk issues, both on sites proposed for development and 
subsequent impacts on existing built up areas; 

• The importance of any new development being well integrated into the existing 
urban area; 

• The importance of any new development being high quality design; 

• That if development does happen that it is well landscaped and includes an 
appropriate buffer/screening to existing homes; 

• The ability of utilities to cope with planned growth; and 

• The impacts of development on local ecology and biodiversity, including ancient 
woodlands, trees and hedgerows. 

As such, the responses received to the consultation process on the Local Plan have 
mirrored the feedback received at public meetings, ward forums and drop-in 
sessions. This is likely to reflect, to some degree at least, some overlap between 
those attending these sessions having subsequently submitted written responses. 

 

Page 20



 13 

7.7 With regards the City Centre AAP, a further 15 responses were received, with 12 
being from organisations and companies whilst the other 3 were from local 
residents. Again the responses received via Survey Monkey appear to have all 
originated from local residents and communities. As such a total of 379 responses 
were received to the AAP from local residents. These issues again mirrored the 
discussions had at the public meetings and drop-in sessions and focused on the 
following points: 

• Coventry University is too dominant within the city centre; 

• There is too much student residential development – there should be more 
homes built for non-students; 

• Support was expressed for the possibility of exposing part of the River 
Sherbourne; 

• Many responses included a general support for regenerating the city centre and 
recognised the need to improve its retail and leisure offer; 

• There was general support for the continuation of the recent public realm 
initiatives; 

• There was support for maximising our historic environment and improving 
awareness and access to it; 

• Responses highlighted a need to improve the city centre parking offer and overall 
accessibility into the city centre; 

• The regeneration of Cathedral Lanes was supported alongside a desire to see 
further improvements to the night time economy; and 

• There was a desire to see more trees and green spaces within the city centre to 
help improve the natural environment. 

 

8 Responses to both Plans from Companies and Organisations 
 
8.1 As highlighted above a total of 91 responses were received to the Local Plan from 

other companies and organisations. Of these 13 were received from neighbouring 
councils (including parish and town councils), a further 5 from other Duty to 
Cooperate bodies and 9 from other local groups or organisations. This left a further 
64 responses from the development industry or large employers/companies in the 
local area. This included national and local house builders, planning consultancies 
and land agents/promoters as well as both Universities and Jaguar Land Rover. 
 

8.2 In general, responses from this grouping were positive and broadly supportive of 
the approach the Local Plan was taking. This included recognition that the city 
could not accommodate its full housing needs within its own boundaries, but that 
the Plan had taken an appropriate and well evidenced approach to growth and 
development. There was also support for site proposals and broad support for the 
key infrastructure and design principles associated with them. There were however 
some areas of challenge and objection, which largely focused around issues of 
housing policy, Green Belt/Local Green Space, Environmental Management 
policies and Retail policies. These covered the following areas: 

• An over projection of available brownfield land and land within the existing urban 
area. Responses suggested capacity could be nearer the 11,000 mark instead of 
the 16/17,000 figure talked about in the Plan; 

• An under estimation of overall capacity due to a number of sites being discounted 
which could otherwise be included. These include: 

• Land south of Duggins Lane - housing 

• Land at Duggins Lane - housing 

• Land north of Duggins Lane - housing 

Page 21



 14 

• Land east of Pickford Green Lane - housing  

• Land west of Pickford Green Lane - housing 

• Garages at Braemar Close - housing 

• Land at Rookery Farm, East of Coundon Wedge Drive - housing 

• President Kennedy Sports Fields, Waste Lane – housing and/or 
education 

• Land at Austin Drive – retail expansion 
NB: The sites in italics above are sites which have not previously been 
considered through the Local Plan or SHLAA process. 

• An under estimate of housing need both locally and within the sub-region. Some 
responses felt the need in Coventry should be nearer 50,000 and the need in 
Coventry and Warwickshire as a whole in excess of 100,000 homes over the 
same plan period; 

• Over prescriptive policies around density and housing types; 

• Over prescriptive policies around affordable housing delivery; 

• Impacts of Keresley SUE on highways and connectivity at Pro-Logis Park; 

• Lack of positive policy around self-build homes and calculation of demand for 
such properties; 

• Over burdening requirements within the Environmental Management section - 
especially around a drive to carbon neutral homes, renewable energy provisions 
and sustainable construction; 

• Over allocation of retail space to the city centre; 

• Unnecessary restriction on further growth of Arena Park retail area; 

• Removal of a small number of areas from the proposed Local Green Space 
designation – especially at the University of Warwick and the Alan Higgs Centre; 

• Expansion of the Local Green Space designation at Charterhouse fields; and 

• Limited concern to the approach to Local Green Space in general. 
 
8.3 In addition to the developer led organisations and businesses, a number of 

responses were received from local groups and specialist organisations to the Local 
Plan. In total 9responses were received from:  

• The Coal Authority  

• Sport England  

• CPRE (Campaign to Protect Rural England) 

• The Woodland Trust Coventry Society; 

• Warwickshire Wildlife Trust; 

• Coventry Tree Wardens Network; 

• The Coventry Green Space and Heritage Forum;  

• President Kennedy School; and 

• Bishop Ullathorne RC School. 
 
8.4 These responses were more specialist in nature reflecting their specific areas of 

interest. Generally comments were positive but did seek some areas of clarification, 
concern and suggested amendments. These can be summarised as follows: 

• The Coal authority raised concern about the lack of policy around land stability 
and mining legacy and felt that such evidence should have been given greater 
consideration in the SHLAA and site appraisal process. 

• Sport England has raised points of clarity around the standard of replacement 
sports pitches linked to sites H2:19 and JE2:4 and whether or not the 
replacement provisions would actually be new facilities. 

Page 22



 15 

• The CPRE have raised a number of objections relating to the quantum of housing 
and employment needs and the impacts this is could have on the Green Belt of 
Coventry and Warwickshire. 

• Both the Woodland Trust and the Coventry Tree Wardens Network have sought a 
strengthening of policy GE3 and GE4 in particular around trees, hedgerows and 
ancient woodlands to ensure they remain protected for future generations 

• Warwickshire Wildlife Trust raises specific concerns about possible impacts on 
Local Wildlife sites and ancient woodlands as a result of planned allocations. Of 
particular concerns are the Sutton Stop site (primarily the land to the east where 
it relates more to the canal area), Keresley, Eastern Green and Whitley. 

• The Coventry Green Space and Heritage Forum raise a number of clarification 
points around on-going protection of parks and green spaces across Coventry 
and clarification around the Local green Space designations. 

• With regards the schools, Bishop Ullathorne have requested an adjustment to 
policy GB2 to clarify that the school land that may be removed from the Green 
Belt would still be retained for education purposes. President Kennedy on the 
other hand have promoted the site of their existing playing fields at Waste Lane 
as a possible redevelopment site for either homes or education (or both).  

 
8.5 In relation to the Area Action Plan, a total of 12 responses were received from 

developers and organisations, of which 2 were Duty to Cooperate related. The 
remaining 10 were largely supportive, although The Woodland Trust has requested 
strengthening of policies around the natural environment. A further representation 
has raised concerns about the ability of the city centre to deliver as much retail floor 
space as has been allocated and how this relates to the evidence base. This 
reflects a similar objection to the retail section of the Local Plan. 

9 Responses to both Plans relating to the Duty to Cooperate 
 

9.1 The Duty to Cooperate is of particular importance to both Plans and requires the 
on-going cooperation and joint working with neighbouring councils and a range of 
strategic stakeholders to ensure the Plan promotes sustainable development. 
Policy DS2 of the draft Local Plan and its supporting text reflects the City Council 
responsibilities under the Duty to Cooperate and makes a solid commitment to on-
going cooperation. Although some organisations have queried the inclusion of this 
policy, there has also been a degree of support for the policy as it reflects that on-
going commitment. This is recognised by some as being particularly important at a 
time where a proportion of Coventry’s housing and employment land needs will be 
delivered in neighbouring authorities. 
 

9.2 With regards neighbouring authorities, Rugby Borough Council (RBC), Warwick 
District Council (WDC), Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council (SMBC), North 
Warwickshire Borough Council (NWBC), Stratford on Avon District Council (SADC), 
Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council (NBBC) and Warwickshire County 
Council have all responded to the Local Plan consultation.  

 
9.3 All responses from these authorities have been positive and reflect the work that 

has been undertaken jointly across Coventry and Warwickshire in recent years. 
Notwithstanding a few points have been flagged up as follows: 

• RBC recognise and support the position of Ansty Park and Pro-Logis Park Ryton 
and that they contribute towards Coventry’s employment land needs 

• RBC highlight some points of clarification in relation to 2 SHLAA sites and seek 
the Council’s on-going commitment to maximising its housing land opportunities 

Page 23



 16 

• NWBC seek longer term commitment to infrastructure investment and growth 
opportunities beyond the life of this Plan 

• WDC highlights their emerging approach to land south of the city boundary at 
Kings Hill and Westwood Heath. This may impact on Policy GB2 as both plans 
evolve 

• WDC seek on-going commitment to continued joint working around infrastructure 
delivery around the city’s southern boundary. This reflects the city’s own Local 
Plan policy DS2. 

• WCC highlight the importance of continued working between CCC and WCC as 
highway authorities to ensure appropriate infrastructure is brought forward. 

• NBBC highlight the importance of continuing to undertake joint working between 
the 2 authorities and highlight the Conservation Area at Hawkesbury as an 
opportunity for future joint work. 

 
9.4 In addition to neighbouring councils a number of objections were received from 

parish and town councils and residents association. Although not directly linked to 
the Duty to Cooperate they are important considerations in the overall Plan making 
process. Keresley, Baginton and Fillongley Parish Councils made formal objections 
to the Plan linked to the development of land within the Green Belt within or near to 
their respective areas, as did the Cromwell Lane and Duggins Lane Residents 
Association and Allesley Green Residents Association. Kenilworth Town Council 
raised similar concerns. Gosford Park Residents Association and Charterhouse 
Residents Association have raised objections to the Local Plan with regards its 
approach to Houses in Multiple Occupation and student housing. South Earlsdon 
Neighbourhood Area also mirrored these concerns whilst also raising explicit 
concerns linked to the consultation process. The Charterhouse Residents 
Association also raised a request to amend policy HE3 in particular around the 
approach to the Heritage Park proposals and possible expansion of Bluecoats 
school. 
 

9.5 Other Duty to cooperate stakeholders who have provided responses to the Local 
Plan can be summarised as follows: 

• West Midlands Integrated Transport Authority makes a range of comments 
around the accessibility chapter of the Local Plan, but is broadly supportive of its 
content. Comments predominantly focus on strengthening and clarifying a few 
areas around public transport connectivity and accessibility 

• Natural England generally supports the strategic approach taken to the protection 
and enhancement of the environment through the policies in this plan and 
supports the Habitats Regulation Assessment. 

• The C&WLEP is again broadly supportive of the Plan. Its main comments focus 
on the need to maintain a constant supply of employment land which is available 
to meet the needs of the city’s economy and support jobs growth. 

• Highways England wish to ensure on-going discussions around development 
proposals, especially where they may have an impact on the strategic highway 
network. This is particularly related to funding and securing developer 
contributions to facilitate key aspects of infrastructure.  

• Historic England seeks clarification around the impacts of some development 
proposals on listed buildings and conservation areas themselves and also the 
setting of some buildings and areas as a result of development proposals.  

• The Environment Agency seeks some minor modifications to the Local Plan 
policies around flood risk (in particular Policies EM4 and EM5). Officers expect to 
undertake further engagement with the Environment Agency in the coming 
weeks, and in advance of submission of the Plan to secure a Statement of 

Page 24



 17 

Common Ground around these policy areas. There is already an existing 
agreement however that the Local Plan seeks to safeguard new and existing 
property from flood risk and implement infrastructure which will help mitigate 
existing risks. 

 
9.6 At this time, no responses have been received from utility providers (including 

Severn Trent), emergency service providers or NHS England. 
 
9.7 In relation to the City Centre AAP, similar areas of discussion have been raised by 

the Environment Agency, although the Plan approach to deculverting is supported. 
Historic England also raised similar comments in relation to the historic environment 
in the city centre. In addition the city’s neighbouring authorities have also expressed 
general support for the Area Action Plan and regeneration of the city centre. 

 

10 Proposed Changes to both Plans 
 

10.1 Following the consultation process there are a small number of amendments and 
minor changes that are proposed for both Plans. These changes are small and 
predominantly aid clarification and certainty of the Plans. All proposed changes are 
included in a schedule at Appendix 8 alongside reasons for them being made. A full 
tracked change version of both plans will be included as part of the material 
submitted to the Secretary of State.  
 

10.2 It is important to stress that it is the appointed Planning Inspector who will 
determine whether or not these changes can be made to the Plan having had 
regard to the consultation responses and the outcomes of the public examination. It 
is however the Council’s responsibility to bring them to the Inspectors attention to 
aid the process, hence the inclusion of the schedule at Appendix 8. 

 
 
List of Appendices: 

1. Copy of the public meeting and ward from presentation slides 
2. Notes of public meetings 
3. Records of Ward Forums (available at this time) 
4. Notes of other meetings (where available) 
5. Summary notes of drop-in sessions 
6. Full Local Plan representations 
7. Full City Centre AAP representations 
8. Schedule of proposed changes to the Local Plan and City Centre AAP 

 
With the exception of Appendix 8, which is included alongside this report, all other 
appendices are available via the Councils website – www.coventry.gov.uk/localplan . 
These appendices are clearly marked and are on line only to reflect their size and level of 
detail. They are however available in paper form to members of Scrutiny Board 3 on 
request. 
 
 
 
Mark Andrews  
Planning and Housing Policy Manager 
Place Directorate 
02476 834295 
 

Page 25



 18 

 
 

Page 26



Appendix 8 – Proposed Minor Amendments to the Local Plan and City Centre Area Action Plan 

The following tables include a list and explanation of proposed adjustments to the Local Plan and City Centre Area Action Plan. The 

changes are proposed as a result of consultation exercises and are aimed at improving clarity and certainty of the Plans. 

All changes are subject to the approval of the appointed Planning Inspector. 

Amended versions of both Plans will be provided at the submission stage which includes tracked changes to help clarify these to 

the Inspector. These will be provided purely as informative items though and will remain subject to public examination and the 

Inspectors on-going considerations. 

Table 1 – Local Plan Minor Changes 

Page number/Policy 

reference 
Proposed amendment Justification and reasoning 

Page 19 2nd set of bullet 

points 
Add Highways England after the reference to the Integrated Transport Authority. 

Correct previous oversight and 

respond to consultation 

Page 32penultimate Para Ansty figure should total 29ha instead of 20 
correcting a miscalculation of 

available land at Ansty 

Page 34 Para above table reference to 216ha should equal 225ha 
correcting a miscalculation of 

available land at Ansty 

Page 34 Table 3.1 
Ryton and Ansty row should total 56ha (instead of 47ha) whilst total should be 225ha instead 

of 216ha 

correcting a miscalculation of 

available land at Ansty 

Table 4.1  - Page 46 
update windfall allowance from 32 per annum to 36 per annum - change supply table and 

capacity references accordingly 

To amend typographical and 

calculation error 

Table 4.2 in Policy H2 - 

Page s48-50 

Keresley - add reference to Jubilee Woodland being protected to aid clarity and support 

sustainable development 

principles. All issues would be 

picked up through wider plan 

Eastern Green - include reference to screening to existing residential areas and strengthen 

Pickford Green reference to say buffering and screening to protect the transition of land use 

into the wider Green Belt 

P
age 27



Walsgrave Hill Farm - add reference to facilitating and working with on-going highway 

proposals by Highways England linked to new Grade Separated junction at Clifford Bridge 

policies. These references simply 

enhance their clarity and 

importance. Walsgrave Hill Farm - add reference to essential drainage and flood risk infrastructure 

Whitmore Park - add "as appropriate." to end of sentence 

Browns Lane - add reference to protection of trees and hedgerows and need to focus primary 

access link to Coundon Wedge Drive 

Land at Sutton stop -  (add permission reference) also add "Development will need to ensure 

that highways access and provisions are adequate and suitable for the site. This could include 

a remodelling of the junction of Sutton Stop and Grange Road and at Alderman's Green Road  

Grange Farm - highway improvements to Grange Road 

Cromwell Lane - add reference to "Westwood Farm and other listed buildings within and 

adjacent to the site" 

page 68 - last Para row 9 add in brackets after HiMO's to say (small and large) to aid clarity 

page 74 - 2nd paragraph amend reference to JE8 to say JE6 to ensure correct reference 

Page 96 - GB2 

amend point 2 by adding  the following words after the end of the 2nd sentence: "Where land 

is related to the provision and potential expansion of existing schools however, this should be 

retained for such use" 

To ensure the policy continues 

to make adequate infrastructure 

provision and improve clarty of 

the policy 

Page 104 - GE3 point 3 add reference to newly planted woodlands as well as ancient woodlands response to consultation 

Page 105 - GE4 

supporting text - first 

Para after policy 

remove the word "minimum" response to consultation 

HE3 - pages 114-115 

Amend wording around policy HE3 and supporting text. Include reference to new masterplan 

being developed with local community and opportunities to designate new Local Green Space 

east of the River Sherbourne to reflect new boundaries created through the masterplan 

process and movement of school facilities to new site. Wording expanded to clarify the 

movement of playing courts and pitches as well as car park. 

to reflect consultation and on-

going work through the 

masterplan with all relevant 

partners 

P
age 28



Chapter 10 - accessibility 

- pages 116  -136 

Small adjustments to wording to strengthen references to public transport infrastructure. 

Updated diagrams to be included in chapter to show highway schemes  more clearly, 

especially around the existing road network and urban areas. 

aid clarity and respond to 

consultation 

Page 146 - 1st Paragraph 

below policy 
Delete wording "Error! Bookmark not defined" as reference included in error remove typing error 

chapter 11 - 

Environmental 

Management - All 

policies and supporting 

text pages 137 - 152 

There are expected to be a small number of adjustments to these policies and their 

supporting text in order to respond to comments raised by the Environment Agency. We 

expect these to be subject to a separate Statement of Common Ground with the Environment 

Agency. 

to ensure consistency with 

national guidance and the most 

appropriate and sustainable 

approach to flood risk is 

maintained and promoted. 

Appendix 1  Housing Trajectory to be updated to reflect small site windfall figure (see above) reflect change to Table 4.1 

Appendix 3 Reference added to woodlands being those over 2acres in size. aid clarity 

Appendix 4  
Improve quality of existing Map to reflect small adjustments to policy and supporting text 

wording and evolving Masterplan 

respond to consultation and 

evolving engagement and 

master planning work 

Appendix 7 

IDP updated to reflect on-going work on costs and clarity over needs. New schemes added to 

reflect and clarify infrastructure requirements for new developments. This will include 

reference to the new bridge across the A45 to connect to Whitley South proposals. In addition 

the Flood Alleviation Schemes at Broad Lane/Banner Lane, Canley Brook and Upper 

Brookstray to committed programme in partnership with the Environment Agency. 

aid clarity and respond to 

consultation 

Appendix 8 
Monitoring indicator for H11 - amend to comment on HiMO conversions (both small and 

large) and HiMO concentrations  
removes duplication with H10 

Appendix 9 front page replace reference to 8 with 9 amend typographical error 

Policies Map add possible new rail station at Stoneleigh Road - policy Ac6 linked to H2 reflect policy 

Policies Map Amend LWS land designations to only show confirmed LWS sites 
aid clarity and respond to 

consultation 

Policies Map 
Amend residential allocations at Keresley and Cromwell Lane to remove existing homes from 

the allocated boundary 

aid clarity and respond to 

consultation 

P
age 29



Policies Map Heat line route to be added to the map 
aid clarity and respond to 

consultation 

Policies Map 
Remove Local Green Space designation at Energy From Waste Plant expansion - currently 

overlaps 

aid clarity and respond to 

consultation 

Policies Map 

Adjust Local Green Space designations and boundaries at the following locations. Built area of 

Ernseford Grange, Caludon Castle and Alderman's Green Primary School, Retail store (built 

area only) at Ansty Road, Properties on Cherrybrook Way, Lucerne Close and Almond Tree 

Avenue, Land at Alard Way (the main highway strip) and built land at Alan Higgs Centre and 

Land south of Eburne Road to reflect extant planning permission as part of NDC Masterplan 

aid clarity, respond to 

consultation and ensure Local 

Green Space designations are 

robustly drawn. 

Local Plan as a whole Remove any references to Local urban Green Space and replace with Local Green Space 
to reflect appropriate name of 

designation 

 

   

Table 2 – City Centre Area Action Plan Minor Changes 
 

Page number/Policy 

reference 
Proposed amendment Justification and reasoning 

Natural Environment 

Section 

There are expected to be a small number of adjustments to these policies and their 

supporting text in order to respond to comments raised by the Environment Agency. We 

expect these to be subject to a separate Statement of Common Ground with the Environment 

Agency. 

To ensure consistency with 

national guidance and the most 

appropriate and sustainable 

approach to flood risk is 

maintained and promoted. 

 

NB: All changes will be incorporated into a Tracked Changes version of the Local Plan and Area Action Plan to 

accompany the submission to the Secretary of State. 

P
age 30



 Briefing note 

To:  Business, Enterprise and Economy Scrutiny Board (3)                   Date: 16th March 2016

Subject: Parks and Friends Groups Task and Finish Group Recommendations

1 Purpose of the Note
1.1 To inform the Business, Enterprise and Economy Scrutiny Board (3) of the 

recommendations agreed by the Parks Task and Finish Group

2 Recommendations
2.1 The Business, Enterprise and Economy Scrutiny Board are recommended to support the 

following recommendations to the Cabinet Member for Culture, Leisure, Sports and Parks

1) Parks and open spaces are considered as the city moves towards becoming an age-
friendly city

2) When resources are available, improvements to parks and open spaces should 
consider age-friendly requirements such as footpaths and safety/anti-social behaviour 
concerns.

3) Support networks for Friends groups are supported by the Council both locally and 
regionally.

4) Section 106 agreements for green spaces are more flexible as to what can be funded 
on a specific site.

3 Information/Background
3.1 At their informal meeting on 24 June 2015, the Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny 

Board (3) established a task and finish group to look at how Friends of Parks groups could 
be supported to make parks and open spaces more age-friendly.

3.2 The task and finish group consisted of:

 Cllr Bigham
 Cllr Lakha (Chair)
 Cllr Lapsa
  Cllr Welsh

3.3 The group met on four occasions and heard information about age-friendly cities, Section 
106 funding and also from representatives of two community groups, as well as visiting 
several park sites across the city.

4 Age-friendly Cities
4.1 The Health and Well-being Board supported becoming an age-friendly city at their meeting 

on 7 July 2014 and subsequently this was adopted as part of the refreshed Council Plan at 
Cabinet on 7 July 2015. 

Page 31

Agenda Item 5



2

4.2 Members heard from Kam Kaur, the Age-Friendly Transformation Manager, as well as 
Anne Lakin, Chair of Coventry Older Voices, about what was happening to support 
Coventry becoming an age-friendly city.

4.3 Members heard that the top priorities for older people when it came to public spaces were 
accessibility, such as suitable paths and walkways, feeling safe, and access to public 
toilets.

4.4 A check list from the World Health Organization of what is involved in becoming an age-
friendly city is provided at appendix 1.

4.5 Anne Lakin also offered to become part of the group to advise and support on age-friendly 
matters.

5 Section 106 funding for parks and open spaces
5.1 Members of the task and finish group considered information about Section 106 (S106) 

agreements for open spaces.

5.2 Members heard that Section 106 monies form part of planning agreements and can be 
designated to a variety of different capital projects such as infrastructure, education and 
open spaces. The money usually has to be spent within in specific geographical area that 
is related to the development for which the planning agreement refers to.

5.3 Members heard that most capital funding for improving parks and open spaces comes 
through S106 agreements and is frequently designated for children’s play facilities. 
Members also heard that although capital funding comes through S106 agreements, the 
on-going revenue costs for maintenance has to come from existing Council budgets.

6 Friends Groups
6.1 Members heard that the Council supports around 30 Friends and community groups 

associated with green spaces across the city. It was explained that these kinds of groups 
can access sources of funding unavailable to the local authority. Examples given were 
Gosford Park Residents Association, who had accessed lottery funding for play equipment 
and Willenhall Rangers who had accessed Woodland Trust funding for tree planting.  

6.2 Members heard about the work that community groups do in terms of supporting the 
community use and maintenance of the green spaces. They also heard from one of the 
Parks Development Officers about the support offered through the Council to community 
groups and friends groups. 

6.3 Members of the task and finish group heard evidence from representatives of 2 community 
groups that support green spaces in their local area. Representatives from Canley Green 
Spaces and Allesley Green Residents Association attended the meeting.

6.4 Members heard about some of the issues experienced by volunteer groups, with parks and 
green spaces, such as anti-social behaviour and sustaining membership.

6.5 The representatives from the two groups found it beneficial to be able to share information 
and experiences.

Gennie Holmes
Scrutiny Co-ordinator
gennie.holmes@coventry.gov.uk
024 7683 1172

Page 32



PAGE 1

Checklist of Essential Features of 
Age-friendly Cities 
Th is checklist of essential age-friendly city features is based on the results of the WHO Global 
Age-Friendly Cities project consultation in 33 cities in 22 countries. Th e checklist is a tool for a 
city’s self-assessment and a map for charting progress. More detailed checklists of age-friendly 
city features are to be found in the WHO Global Age-Friendly Cities Guide. 

Th is checklist is intended to be used by individuals and groups interested in making their 
city more age-friendly. For the checklist to be eff ective, older people must be involved as full 
partners. In assessing a city’s strengths and defi ciencies, older people will describe how the 
checklist of features matches their own experience of the city’s positive characteristics and 
barriers. Th ey should play a role in suggesting changes and in implementing and monitoring 
improvements. 

Outdoor spaces and buildings
☐ Public areas are clean and pleasant.

☐ Green spaces and outdoor seating are 
suffi  cient in number, well-maintained 
and safe.

☐ Pavements are well-maintained, free of 
obstructions and reserved for pedestrians.

☐ Pavements are non-slip, are wide enough 
for wheelchairs and have dropped curbs to 
road level.

☐ Pedestrian crossings are suffi  cient in 
number and safe for people with diff erent 
levels and types of disability, with non-
slip markings, visual and audio cues and 
adequate crossing times.

☐ Drivers give way to pedestrians at intersec-
tions and pedestrian crossings.

☐ Cycle paths are separate from pavements 
and other pedestrian walkways.

☐ Outdoor safety is promoted by good street 
lighting, police patrols and community 
education.

☐ Services are situated together and are 
accessible.

☐ Special customer service arrangements 
are provided, such as separate queues or 
service counters for older people.

☐ Buildings are well-signed outside and 
inside, with suffi  cient seating and toilets, 
accessible elevators, ramps, railings and 
stairs, and non-slip fl oors.

☐ Public toilets outdoors and indoors are 
suffi  cient in number, clean, well-main-
tained and accessible.

Transportation
☐ Public transportation costs are consistent, 

clearly displayed and aff ordable.

☐ Public transportation is reliable and fre-
quent, including at night and on weekends 
and holidays.

☐ All city areas and services are accessible by 
public transport, with good connections 
and well-marked routes and vehicles.

Page 33



PAGE 2

☐ Vehicles are clean, well-maintained, acces-
sible, not overcrowded and have priority 
seating that is respected.

☐ Specialized transportation is available for 
disabled people.

☐ Drivers stop at designated stops and beside 
the curb to facilitate boarding and wait for 
passengers to be seated before driving off .

☐ Transport stops and stations are conve-
niently located, accessible, safe, clean, well-
lit and well-marked, with adequate seating 
and shelter.

☐ Complete and accessible information is 
provided to users about routes, schedules 
and special needs facilities.

☐ A voluntary transport service is available 
where public transportation is too limited.

☐ Taxis are accessible and aff ordable, and 
drivers are courteous and helpful.

☐ Roads are well-maintained, with covered 
drains and good lighting.

☐ Traffi  c fl ow is well-regulated.

☐ Roadways are free of obstructions that 
block drivers’ vision.

☐ Traffi  c signs and intersections are visible 
and well-placed.

☐ Driver education and refresher courses are 
promoted for all drivers.

☐ Parking and drop-off  areas are safe, suffi  -
cient in number and conveniently located.

☐ Priority parking and drop-off  spots for 
people with special needs are available and 
respected.

Housing
☐ Suffi  cient, aff ordable housing is available 

in areas that are safe and close to services 
and the rest of the community.

☐ Suffi  cient and aff ordable home mainte-
nance and support services are available.

☐ Housing is well-constructed and provides 
safe and comfortable shelter from the 
weather.

☐ Interior spaces and level surfaces allow 
freedom of movement in all rooms and 
passageways.

☐ Home modifi cation options and supplies 
are available and aff ordable, and providers 
understand the needs of older people.

☐ Public and commercial rental housing is 
clean, well-maintained and safe.

☐ Suffi  cient and aff ordable housing for frail 
and disabled older people, with appropri-
ate services, is provided locally.

Social participation
☐ Venues for events and activities are con-

veniently located, accessible, well-lit and 
easily reached by public transport. 

☐ Events are held at times convenient for 
older people.

☐ Activities and events can be attended 
alone or with a companion.

☐ Activities and attractions are aff ordable, 
with no hidden or additional participa-
tion costs. 

Page 34



PAGE 3

☐ Good information about activities and 
events is provided, including details about 
accessibility of facilities and transportation 
options for older people.

☐ A wide variety of activities is off ered to 
appeal to a diverse population of older 
people.

☐ Gatherings including older people are held 
in various local community spots, such as 
recreation centres, schools, libraries, com-
munity centres and parks.

☐ Th ere is consistent outreach to include 
people at risk of social isolation.

Respect and social inclusion
☐ Older people are regularly consulted by 

public, voluntary and commercial services 
on how to serve them better.

☐ Services and products to suit varying 
needs and preferences are provided by 
public and commercial services. 

☐ Service staff  are courteous and helpful.

☐ Older people are visible in the media, and 
are depicted positively and without stereo-
typing.

☐ Community-wide settings, activities and 
events attract all generations by accommo-
dating age-specifi c needs and preferences.

☐ Older people are specifi cally included in 
community activities for “families”.

☐ Schools provide opportunities to learn 
about ageing and older people, and involve 
older people in school activities.

☐ Older people are recognized by the com-
munity for their past as well as their pres-
ent contributions.

☐ Older people who are less well-off  have 
good access to public, voluntary and pri-
vate services.

Civic participation and employment
☐ A range of fl exible options for older vol-

unteers is available, with training, recog-
nition, guidance and compensation for 
personal costs.

☐ Th e qualities of older employees are well-
promoted.

☐ A range of fl exible and appropriately paid 
opportunities for older people to work is 
promoted.

☐ Discrimination on the basis of age alone is 
forbidden in the hiring, retention, promo-
tion and training of employees.

☐ Workplaces are adapted to meet the needs 
of disabled people.

☐ Self-employment options for older people 
are promoted and supported.

☐ Training in post-retirement options is 
provided for older workers.

☐ Decision-making bodies in public, pri-
vate and voluntary sectors encourage and 
facilitate membership of older people.

Communication and information
☐ A basic, eff ective communication system 

reaches community residents of all ages.

☐ Regular and widespread distribution of 
information is assured and a coordinated, 
centralized access is provided. Page 35



PAGE 4

☐ Regular information and broadcasts of 
interest to older people are off ered.

☐ Oral communication accessible to older 
people is promoted.

☐ People at risk of social isolation get one-to-
one information from trusted individuals.

☐ Public and commercial services provide 
friendly, person-to-person service on 
request.

☐ Printed information – including offi  cial 
forms, television captions and text on vi-
sual displays – has large lettering and the 
main ideas are shown by clear headings 
and bold-face type.

☐ Print and spoken communication uses 
simple, familiar words in short, straight-
forward sentences.

☐ Telephone answering services give in-
structions slowly and clearly and tell call-
ers how to repeat the message at any time.

☐ Electronic equipment, such as mobile 
telephones, radios, televisions, and bank 
and ticket machines, has large buttons and 
big lettering.

☐ Th ere is wide public access to computers 
and the Internet, at no or minimal charge, 
in public places such as government of-
fi ces, community centres and libraries.

Community and health services
☐ An adequate range of health and commu-

nity support services is off ered for promot-
ing, maintaining and restoring health. 

☐ Home care services include health and 
personal care and housekeeping.

☐ Health and social services are convenient-
ly located and accessible by all means of 
transport.

☐ Residential care facilities and designated 
older people’s housing are located close to 
services and the rest of the community.

☐ Health and community service facilities 
are safely constructed and fully accessible.

☐ Clear and accessible information is pro-
vided about health and social services for 
older people.

☐ Delivery of services is coordinated and 
administratively simple.

☐ All staff  are respectful, helpful and trained 
to serve older people.

☐ Economic barriers impeding access to 
health and community support services 
are minimized. 

☐ Voluntary services by people of all ages are 
encouraged and supported.

☐ Th ere are suffi  cient and accessible burial 
sites. 

☐ Community emergency planning takes 
into account the vulnerabilities and ca-
pacities of older people.

WHO/FCH/ALC/2007.1
© World Health Organization 2007. All rights reserved.

Page 36



1

Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3)                   16th March 2016
Scrutiny Work Programme 2015/16

15 July 2015
MIPIM Outcomes
Trade and Investment Delegation to New Delhi and North-West India
16 September 2015
Jobs and Growth Strategy Annual Report
TESS
Friday 27 November 2015 (please note the change of date)
City Centre Retail Developments and Friargate
Footfall in the City Centre
16 December 2015
Environment and Sustainability
Jobs and Growth Strategy 6 month update
27 January 2015
Discretionary Licensing for the Private Rented Sector Housing - Task & Finish group 
recommendations
Sports Strategy
Local Enterprise Partnership - Update
16 March 2015
Local Plan Representations
Task & Finish Group –Friends Groups and Age-friendly Parks
13 April 2015
Items to be identified
Date to be arranged
Employment Strategy
Tourism and Events
Transport Infrastructure – including devolution and Combined Authority
Next Municipal Year 16-17
Jobs and Growth Strategy
Environment and Sustainability
Fuel Poverty (possibly to combine with the above)

Last updated 01/03/16

Page 37

Agenda Item 6



Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) 2015/16

2

Item Detail Cabinet Member/ 
Lead Officer

Source Outcomes

15 July 2015 MIPIM Outcomes A conference report to be 
presented for MIPIM 2015 an 
update briefing note on the 
outcomes and progress made on 
the follow ups from the MIPIM

David Cockcroft
Cllr Maton

Meeting 
8/10/14

Trade and Investment 
Delegation to New 
Delhi and North-West 
India

A conference report from a visit to 
India by the Lord Mayor and 
Cabinet Member Business, 
Enterprise and Employment

Cllr Maton
David Cockroft

Amended 
recommendation 
to include 
Jalandhar for 
business links in 
India

16 September 
2015

Jobs and Growth 
Strategy Annual 
Report

To look at progress over the year 
and also planning for the coming 
year to develop the jobs and 
growth strategy.

Rebecca Young
Cllr Maton

Chair
7/7/15

TESS To consider the Cabinet Member 
report on the future delivery of the 
employment support service

Rebecca Young
Cllr Maton

Chair
31/7/15

Friday 27 
November 
2015 (please 
note the 
change of 
date)

City Centre Retail 
Developments and 
Friargate

Following their consideration of 
progress in December 2014, the 
Board requested regular updates 
on progress in securing tenants 
and investment in the project. To 
include the new sports centre, 
combined with a visit to the 
marketing suite at Friargate

David Cockroft
Cllr Maton

Meeting 
17/12/14

Footfall in the City 
Centre

To find out what strategies are 
being done to support increase in 
footfall and monitor progress

David Cockroft
Cllr Maton

Informal 
meeting 
24/6/15

P
age 38



Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) 2015/16

3

16 December 
2015

Environment and 
Sustainability

An update briefing note on current 
issues to do with environment and 
sustainability issues.

Andrew Walster
Michael Checkley
Cllr Maton

Chair

Jobs and Growth 
Strategy 6 month 
update

Cabinet Member report detailing 6 
month progress update on the 
Jobs and Growth Strategy

Rebecca Young Cllr 
Maton

Chair

27 January 
2015

Discretionary 
Licensing for the 
Private Rented Sector 
Housing - Task & 
Finish group 
recommendations  

Cllrs Welsh, Walsh, Bigham, Bailey 
to look at the quality of private 
sector housing (what implications 
are there from the rise in the 
private sector – Discretionary 
Licensing) and identify 
recommendations to the Cabinet 
Member

Craig Hickin
Cllr Maton

19/06/14

Sports Strategy To monitor progress on the 
Strategy, particularly in terms of 
increasing participation in young 
people and disadvantaged areas, 
access to facilities via public 
transport, improved links with 
sports facilities in parks free at the 
point of access, and better public 
access to schools and university 
facilities.

David Nuttall
Cllr A Khan

Meeting 
28/1/15

Local Enterprise 
Partnership - Update

The Cabinet Member for BEE is a 
Director of the LEP. A regular 
update on progress including 
contribution from the Council 
delivering the Economic Plan. Also 
to include plans for supporting 
businesses carbon reduction.

Cllr Maton

P
age 39



Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) 2015/16

4

16 March 
2015

Local Plan 
Representations

To consider in more detail the 
representations made once the 
Local Plan is published for 
responses. To invite members of 
planning for information and to 
identify recommendations to Chair 
of Planning, SB3 and Cabinet 
Member as agreed at Council 
12/1/16

Mark Andrews
Cllr Maton

Meeting 
21/8/15

Task & Finish Group –
Friends Groups and 
Age-friendly Parks

The Board were interested in 
finding out more about how the 
city’s parks and open spaces can 
contribute to addressing health 
inequalities within the context of 
Coventry being a Marmot City and 
how the Council can work with 
Friends groups to support this.

Cllr A Khan/
David Nuttall
Graham Hood

Informal 
meeting 
24/6/15

SB4 Meeting 
31/7/13

13 April 2015 Items to be identified

Employment Strategy Part of the Jobs Strategy – to look 
in more detail at support and 
information available to those 
seeking work, which organisations 
are delivering services and 
avoiding duplication. Should also 
include the review of TESS

Rebecca Young
Cllr Maton

Date to be 
arranged

Tourism and Events Following on from the 
consideration by Scruco of the 
Tourism Strategy

David Nuttall
Cllr Maton

P
age 40



Business, Economy and Enterprise Scrutiny Board (3) 2015/16

5

Transport 
Infrastructure – 
including devolution 
and Combined 
Authority

To look in more detail at the 
transport infrastructure of the city. 
Maybe link with the LEP single 
infrastructure plan for Coventry 
and Warwickshire and the 
devolved powers as part of the 
Combined Authority

Cllr McNicholas
Cllr Maton
Mike Waters

Next 
Municipal 
Year 16-17

Jobs and Growth 
Strategy

To include progress as well as 
projects funded from European 
money

Rebecca Young Cllr Lakha

Environment and 
Sustainability

To update Members on progress of 
recommendations from their 
meeting on 16/12/15

Michael Checkley 16/12/15

Fuel Poverty (possibly 
to combine with the 
above)

Following on from their 
consideration of the report on 
progress on the Home Energy 
Conservation Act, Members 
requested further report on 
progress to address fuel poverty. 
Also to include representation from 
Public Health

Michael Checkley
Cllr Maton

11/3/15
16/12/15

P
age 41



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4 Feedback on the Local Plan and City Centre Area Action Plan Periods of Public Consultation (18 January 2016 - 29 February 2016)
	Feedback on Local Plan and City Centre Area Action Plan Periods of Public Consultation (18 January 2016 - 29 February 2016) - APPENDIX 8

	5 Parks and Friends Groups Task and Finish Group Recommendations
	Parks and Friends Groups Task and Finish Group Recs Reports - Appendix

	6 Work Programme 2015/2016

